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Marquette University Then & Now
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A 
photograph not only captures a discrete moment in time but can often encapsulate 
the ethos of its subject. So it is with the images included in this exhibition  catalogue. 
They highlight the evolution of a small, all-male college on the periphery of downtown 
Milwaukee into a vibrant, culturally diverse university of  women and men engaged 
with their urban environment and the larger global community. Indeed, that spirit 

of community is at the heart of the collaborative effort which envisioned and then successfully 
mounted the exhibition that illuminates “Marquette University: Then and Now” and in so doing  
celebrates the institution’s 125 year commitment to faith and learning in action. 
 
Carla H. Hay
Chair, 125th Anniversary Committee

Reflections on 125 Years of Living History

W ith over a century of living history to its credit, it is fitting that the members of the 
Marquette University community should choose to reflect on what it was and what 
it has become. The Haggerty Museum, now into its 23rd year of service on the 
campus, both exemplifies how far the University has come and provides a  suitable 
venue for the event. 

Photography, whose existence extends only slightly longer than the 125 years chronicled here, 
offers a medium of convenience to tell the story. In this instance,  the photographs are of ordi-
nary lived experiences, places or events marking the passage of time. A special feature of this 
particular exhibition is its double-play on the elements of time. Historic photographs in the ex-
hibition reference particular moments of the past as icons, while the contemporary photographs 
of related incidents are juxtaposed with the earlier ones. The photographs are not intended as art 
photography. Rather, they document the memories of people and places important to the evolu-
tion of  Marquette University’s campus life. 

For the most part, the people in the photographs are engaged in some or other campus-based 
activity. A Peace Corps worker rides a water buffalo, and a priest plays a guitar. In another mood, 
a group of Marquette peace activists signal their opposition to the Vietnam War. Other students 
are shown engaging the fine arts resources of the Old Masters gallery of the Haggerty Museum of 
Art and the stage of the Helfaer Theater. Augmenting these activities are representative moments 
given to athletics, as in a 2003 photo celebrating an NCAA tournament victory. Another selection 
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The six members of the class of 1888  

Marquette College opened in 1881, but 
Jesuit instructors quickly realized that 
their students were not ready for collegiate-
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The Marquette Jesuit 
community in the television 
studio of Johnston Hall, 2005  

Rev. Robert A. Wild, S.J., 22nd 
president, and Rev. James 
Flaherty, S.J., rector of the Jesuit 
community, are seated fourth 
and fifth from the left in the 
front row, respectively. Today’s 
Jesuit community consists of 
60 members, with more than 
half serving the university as 
faculty or administrators. Other 
members are pursuing graduate 
studies, work in pastoral ministry 
for the Milwaukee Archdiocese, 
or have retired from the univer-
sity. Extensive renovations of the 
television studio were completed in late 2006, one of numerous improvements made possible 
due to the generosity of J. William (’51) and Mary (’52) Diederich, for whom the College of Com-
munications is now named.

Aerial view of Marquette’s lower 
campus with Sensenbrenner Hall in the 
foreground, ca. 1938-1940

Sensenbrenner Hall was designed 
by Milwaukee architect Alexander C. 
Eschweiler and completed in 1923. 
University officials requested that the 
architect retain the collegiate Gothic 
architectural style of the Clybourn Street 
gymnasium, completed two years earlier. 
Stately elms once lined both sides of 
the electric streetcar tracks along North 
11th Street. The residential area south of 
campus and the industrial Menomonee 
Valley are also clearly visible in this 
photograph. Faculty from the Physics 
Department taught astronomy using a 
telescope mounted on the roof of Johnston 
Hall, visible on the edge of the print.       

View from the roof of Carpenter Tower, 
2005

Construction of the Marquette Interchange 
in the late 1960s led to the demolition of 
the residential neighborhood immediately 
south of campus. A portion of the former 
residential area now forms Tory Hill, a green 
buffer between the campus and the interstate 
highway. Other changes include construction 
of the Law Library/Legal Research Center and 
the Haggerty Museum of Art. The telescope 
used by astronomy students was removed from 
Johnston Hall in the early 1980s.
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The Law School (completed 1923), 
Johnston Hall (1907) and Gesu 
Church (1894), photographed ca. 
1925

By the mid 1920s, the eastern edge of 
campus along Wisconsin Avenue had an 
appearance strikingly similar to today. 
Johnston Hall, designed by Milwaukee 
architect Charles D. Crane, was completed 
in 1907. An eclectic structure combining 
Renaissance and Gothic motifs, the 
building’s facade is divided into three equal 
bays, each four windows wide. In 1908, 
Crane released architectural drawings to 
local newspapers of a building matching 
Johnston Hall, to be built west of Gesu 
Church for Marquette’s Law School. 
The building was never constructed, 
however, and Crane did no further work 
for Marquette University.

Southeastern edge of campus 
photographed from 11th Street, 2006

For more than a century, the most promi-
nent building on the eastern edge of campus 
has been Gesu Church. The Gothic Revival 
church was designed by Henry C. Koch, 
one of the Milwaukee’s most accomplished 
architects of the nineteenth century. 
(Koch also designed City Hall, the Pfister 
Hotel and Calvary Presbyterian Church). 
Constructed in just 20 months in 1893-94, 
the facade is dominated by two massive 
towers. The dark gray, steeply pitched roof 
serves to compliment the light limestone 
walls of the exterior. Administered by the 
Society of Jesus, Gesu serves as a Catho-
lic parish for West Side residents as well 
as for the Marquette community.  

Photo composite of pole-vaulter Frank 
Glaser (‘28) at Marquette Stadium, ca. 
1926-28    

This composite print required recomposing at 
least a dozen unique images of pole-vaulter 
Frank Glaser (’28) in motion. The session was 
undoubtedly more challenging for Glaser, due 
to the physical demands presented by the rigid 
steel pole. A three-time All-American, Glaser 
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Looking south at the east elevation 
of the School of Medicine along N. 
15th Street, ca. 1935-37

Jesuit schools have a centuries-
old tradition as urban institutions. 
During the 1930s, a large percent-
age of the student body commuted to 
campus on a daily basis.  Adding to 
the urban feel was a mix of commer-
cial and private residential properties 
along N. 14th and N. 15th Street. In 
the 1940s, Marquette University en-
gineering students surveyed campus 
and verified that their new building 
was located on what became known 
as the  “upper campus” (Medicine, 
Engineering, Dentistry). The “Lower 
campus” (Law, Johnston, Marquette 
Hall, Gesu Church) is defined by 11th 
through 13th Streets. 

Students and faculty on the campus 
mall between classes, 2006

Marquette University remains deeply 
committed to the city, yet the urban 
environment has become significantly 
greener in recent years. In the mid 1960s, 
the City of Milwaukee agreed to close 
the north-south streets that dissected 
campus, allowing the university to 
transform much of this property into 
a pedestrian mall. The Schroeder 
Complex, in the background, now serves 
as the home of both the College of Health 
Sciences and School of Education.

Wisconsin Avenue after the Storm of ’47

Milwaukee artist George New probably shot this 
photograph of Wisconsin Avenue on January 31, 1947, 
as residents cleaned up after the worst snowstorm in 
Milwaukee history. 18 inches of snow paralyzed the 
community and high winds created drifts up to 15 feet. 
Classes and extra-curricular activities were cancelled. 
A group of Jesuit instructors were stranded inside 
Marquette High (34th Street and Wisconsin Avenue) 
for three days, consuming all the supplies in the high 
school cafeteria.   
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Women of Merritty Hall, ca. 1947-48

Following the Second World War, the 
Association of Marquette Universi-
ty Women purchased several nearby 
homes converting them to student 
housing to accommodate the rapidly ex-
panding enrollment. Merritty Hall was a 
former apartment building that served 
as a women’s residence hall. Student 
monitors enforced a “lights out” policy 
at 10:30 p.m. One of Marquette’s finest 
neighbors, The Blood Center of Wis-
consin, today occupies this location, at 
17th Street and Wisconsin Avenue.   

Women of Cobeen Hall, 2006

Sarah Weiss, Rebecca Debon, Abigail 
Sosinski and Elizabeth Lynch, depicted 
here, are just four of the estimated 10,000 
women who have lived in Cobeen Hall 
since its dedication in 1966. Formerly the 
LaSalle Hotel, Cobeen Hall today has the 
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Krista Rizzo navigates an 
assortment of new technologies on 
the Opus North bridge connecting 
Raynor Memorial Libraries

Dedicated in 2003, the John P. 
Raynor, S.J., Library was designed 
less around the library collections 
and more around rapidly changing 
information technology. A service-
oriented staff assists library patrons 
in locating, evaluating and presenting 
information in a variety of formats. 
Use of the Raynor Memorial Libraries 
has close to tripled since 2003. 

The university art collection on 
display in the main reading room of 
Memorial Library, 1957

Beginning in the late 1950s, Professor 
John Pick (Department of English) and 
William Ready (Director of Libraries) 
partnered to significantly expand the 
university’s fine art collection. Some 
of the most significant works in the 
university’s collection were displayed 
in the reading rooms of the Memorial 
Library, completed in 1953.

Annemarie Sawkins, a curator 
at the Haggerty Museum of Art, 
lecturing to freshman as part 
of an Introduction to Inquiry 
seminar, 2006

The Patrick and Beatrice Haggerty 
Museum of Art opened in 1984. 
Exhibitions and programming serve 
to enhance both instruction and 
community outreach. Curators 
maintain four galleries featuring 
the permanent collection and 
special exhibitions. A salon-style 
installation of Old Master works at 
the Haggerty includes St. Francis 
in Penitence, ca. 1695-1700, by the 
Italian artist Francesco Trevisani. 
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University publicity image prepared for the 
opening of O’Donnell Hall, 1952

With generous financial support from the 
Association of Marquette University Women, 
O’Donnell Hall opened to serve the burgeoning 
number of female students on campus. In 
1952, more than 1,800 women were enrolled as 
undergraduates, a majority residing on campus. 
O’Donnell Hall remains a single-sex residence hall, 
but since 1990, it has been an all-male residence 
for freshmen. Ironically, some O’Donnell residents 
have organized and petitioned the university to 
keep their dormitory “forever male.”

Moving into McCormick Hall, 2006

Informality, parental involvement and a lot 
of “stuff” have replaced the hat boxes, hard 
luggage and saddle shoes of an earlier era. 
The largest of Marquette’s eight residence 
halls, co-ed McCormick Hall serves more 
than 725 freshmen.    

Preparing for a television broadcast in the 
School of Speech, ca. 1959-63

Marquette entered the television age in 1939, when 
members of the University Chorus were broadcast 
singing Christmas carols from a downtown depart-
ment store. Nearly a decade later, intercollegiate 
boxing matches from the Clybourn Street gymna-
sium entertained Milwaukee residents fortunate 
enough to own a television set. In 1954, a part-
nership between College of Engineering and the 
School of Speech served to introduce television 
production in 
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MUTV studio in J. William and Mary 
Diederich College of Communication, 2006

MUTV is an all-volunteer student organiza-
tion, operating a digital television station 
from Johnston Hall. Students present news, 
produce documentaries and specials, and 
offer remote broadcasts of women’s basket-
ball games from the McGuire Center. Here, 
MUTV staffers Mike Lloyd, Sarah Bicanich 
and Katharine Grevenow prepare for an 
evening newscast.  

Janet Kapral Abels (’61) in the 1961 MU Players 
production of George Bernard Shaw’s St. Joan

Dramatic presentations at Marquette date back to the 
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Peace Corps worker Gerald W. 
Mullins (’61) on a water buffalo in 
The Philippines, 1962

Inspired by President John F. Kennedy’s 
“New Frontier,” Gerald Mullins served 
as one of the initial 300 Peace Corps 
volunteers. Following orientation and 
training, Mullins was sent to teach at an 
elementary school in Santo Domingo 
Albay. In 1962, The Milwaukee Journal 
published this image as part of a 
feature-length article about Mullins’ 
experiences.  Image courtesy of The 
Milwaukee Journal and Dr. Gerald W. 
Mullins.  

Marquette undergraduate Laura 
Spella (’06) on a mule while on a 
service-learning trip to Honduras, 
2006

Each year two dozen Marquette 
students and staff accompany a team 
of medical professionals as part of 
Marquette’s Global Medical Relief 
Effort in Honduras. Volunteers travel 
to rural villages, establishing medical 
clinics that provide essential health 
services to the rural population. 
Today, more than 90% of Marquette’s 
undergraduates participate in some 
form of service-learning during 
their years at the university.   Image 
courtesy of Dr. Toby Peters.

Marquette students protesting 
corporate recruiting by Dow Chemical 
Co., December, 1967

At the height of American involvement in 
the Vietnam War, peace activists opposed 
campus recruiting by corporations 
linked to the U.S. military. Dow 
Chemical Company – a manufacturer of 
napalm, military boots and uniforms – 
was often a lightning rod. Activists at 
Marquette picketed in front of Copus 
Hall, ignoring an anti-demonstration 
group that paraded a live sheep during 
their march.  





17

Looking northwest from the 
Biltmore Apartments, ca. 1977 

In 1973, what was originally the 
Stratford Arms Hotel (center) and 
later Herraty Hall became the Jesuit 
Residence. The Elizabeth Plankinton 
mansion appears in the western edge of 
the photograph. Owned by the Knights 
of Columbus, the mansion was razed 
in early 1981 despite protests against 
its demolition. The Chapel of the Holy 
Family, a part of the Alumni Memorial 
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T he Haggerty Museum of Art opened in 1984 on the Marquette University campus as a 
project of the Marquette University Women’s Council and features award winning archi-
tectural design. The Haggerty Museum includes four main galleries and houses a perma-
nent collection of more than 8,000 works of art. It regularly offers exhibitions showing 

cultural diversity and art influenced by modern technology. The permanent collection includes 
European and American contemporary art, Old Master paintings, as well as works on paper, 
photography and collections of African and Asian art. Since the museum’s inception, its goals of 
being an integral part of the educational experiences offered at Marquette University, providing 
a rich variety of art to the Milwaukee community, with visibility on a national and international 
level, have remained constant.

The museum offers exhibitions from its permanent collection and special exhibitions as a means 
of integrating the visual arts into the university arts and sciences curriculum.  Its programs high-
light the humanizing impact of the visual arts within the university curriculum and in its com-
munity outreach. As a university museum, the Haggerty sponsors lectures, symposia, workshops 
and tours to interpret the arts to its various audiences.
	
The Haggerty Museum of Art’s permanent collection is on display in its Old Master and Modern 
galleries. Modern and contemporary artists in the collection include Georges Braque, Salvador 
Dalí, Max Lieberman, Man Ray, Matta, Louise Nevelson, Nam June Paik, Ruldolf Schlichter, Helen 
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